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March 23, 2020 
Addendum #2 

IMMEDIATE ATTENTION 
 
TO: ALL OFFERORS 
 
RE: RFP 015-0-2020AZ 
   
The following information is provided to questions received: 
  

1. Do you currently have a Single Sign-On Authentication System that you want the internal 
users to continue to use for accessing this system or does each system have its own 
login/password? 

Response: Yes 
2. Will any external users (customers) be able to respond electronically as anonymous (i.e. 

you have their names/email, but they don’t need a login)? 
Response: Yes 

3. Will any external users (customers) need to be authenticated with your existing systems to 
respond?  

Response: No 
4. Will external users (customers) need to be able to retrieve and look at all the information 

they submitted historically? 
Response: No 

5. Are all multi-media such as Audio Notes need to be both sent to and received from 
external users? 

Response: N/A  
6. Do you need very detail Auditing of all activity? 

Response: We will need audit history of items, such as modified, submitted, started, etc. 
7. Is the System for electronic signature required to be compliant in such as way to withstand 

legal challenges in court? 
Response: Yes 

8. Is it required that any part of this system not use any cloud-based solutions? 
Response: No 

9. Will all the attachments received from external users (multi-media) need to be added to 
your ECM? 

Response: Yes 
10. Is the Auto-save feature meant for internal or external users? 

Response: Both  
11. What is the volume of new forms authored per month/year (i.e. new forms created and sent 

to customers/parents)?  This is usually one-time event where then the copy of the form is 
sent to many people. 
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Response: This will be discussed at the RFP meetings.  
12. What is the volume of request sent to external users per month/year (customers) to respond 

to and sign? This would be estimate of expected responses 
Response: This will be discussed at the RFP meetings.  

13. Does the system have to handle complex workflows such as multiple people signing a 
document for approval? 

 Response: No 
      14-Regarding the Electronic Content Management (ECM) system: 
a) Which ECM do you use? Response: DOMA 
b) What is your expectation for integration with ECM? Response: Forms need to be in PDF 
form to be uploaded or directly link 
c) Are you looking for bi-directional integration with ECM? Response: Yes 
d) What types of data do you expect to have shared between ECM and our Forms Solution?  
Please specify must haves versus optional for data in both directions. Response: No information 
will come from ECM to your system, your system should be able to send the completed 
forms to our ECM. 
e) Does the ECM have an API we can use for data transfers? Response: N/A 
      15-Regarding the Hire Enterprise, and Human Resource Information System (HRIS): 
a) What is your expectation for integration with HRIS?  Response: None 
b) Are you looking for bi-directional integration with HRIS? Response: No 
c) What types of data do you expect to have shared between HRIS and our Forms Solution?  
Please specify must haves versus optional for data in both directions. Response: None 
d) Does HRIS have an API we can use for data transfers? Response: N/A 
      16-Regarding MUNIS: 
a) What is your expectation for integration with MUNIS?  Response: None 
b) Are you looking for bi-directional integration with MUNIS? Response: N/A 
c) What types of data do you expect to have shared between MUNIS and our Forms 
Solution?  Please specify must haves versus optional for data in both directions. Response: N/A 
d) Does MUNIS have an API we can use for data transfers? Response: N/A 
     17-Which SIS do you use? 
a) Are you looking for bi-directional integration with your SIS? Response: None 
b) Please provide what data fields you expect/need to have written back to the SIS?  Please 
specify must haves versus optional for data in both directions. Response: N/A 
c) Does the SIS have an API we can use for data transfers? Response: N/A 
 
      18- Like most providers of online software services, end-users of our services agree to Terms 
of Service and General Conditions as a condition to using our services.  Those Terms of Service 
and General Conditions include (among other things) acknowledgements that the user will not 
reverse engineer our software, the user is responsible for protecting his or her login credentials, 
we have no responsibility for the accuracy of information the user sends through our service, and 
the subscribing organization – NPPS in this case – can rely legally on an electronic consent 
submitted by a user through our service.   Will NPPS allow our standard Terms of Service and 
General Conditions to apply to users, so long as they do not conflict with the Terms and 
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Conditions or Specifications included in the RFP?  (You can assume that, if there is such a 
conflict, the RFP’s Terms and Conditions and Specifications will control.)  
Response: Please refer the RFP for this and further information will be provided in the 
meetings.  
 

19. Does NNPS have an estimated number of forms that will be in scope of the immediate 
and/or near future project?  

Response: 20-30 
20. Can examples of the “Multiple Type Forms” mentioned in section I. Purpose, be provided? 

Response: They would include standard pre-employment forms, retirement forms, workers 
comp forms, FMLA forms, etc. 

21. Is the intent to implement a single solution to accommodate a “paperless environment” 
that will provide Electronic Forms as part of a new ECM solution? Or an Electronic Forms 
solution that meets the described requirements to integrate with current ECM, MUNIS, 
HRMS solutions etc. mentioned in the RFP? 

Response: We are currently seeking an e-forms solution, if the solution was incorporated 
with other systems such as ECM that would not exclude. We are not interested in replacing 
our ATS or HRIS system.  

22. Are you considering or have a preference whether the solution is Cloud or On-Premise 
based?  

Response: We prefer cloud 
23. Are there any workflow requirements associated to the desired forms process, such as 

multi-tier approvals? If so, please provide greater detail/s on any known required 
workflow requirements. 

Response: NNPS will consider all options proposed 
24. Are there any other 3rd Part applications not mentioned in the RFP that will need to have 

integration capabilities/requirements?  
Response: No 

25. Is MFA (Multi Factor Authentication) a requirement?  
Response: No 

26. Is there any single sign on requirements?  
Response: Must be able to work with single sign on 

27. Should any past or day forward manual paper/forms processing needs be taken into 
consideration? i.e. scanning/capturing paper forms vs electronic forms?  

Response: No 
28. Does NNPS have an estimated number of users that will need create/edit forms? 

Response: 24 
29. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this?  (like, from India or Canada). 

Response: All companies must be registered to do business with the Virginia State 
Corporation Commission and must have a US based operational location.  All support 
centers must have a North American presence.   

30. Whether we need to come over there for meetings?  
Response: Yes, they will have to be able to come onsite for meetings and presentations 
through the RFP process and possibly through the implementation process. 
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31. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada). 
Response: All companies must be registered to do business with the Virginia State 
Corporation Commission and must have a US based operational location.  All support 
centers must have a North American presence.   

32. Can we submit the proposals via email?  
Response: Please refer to Addendum #1 on EVA and NNPS Website.   
 
All other provisions of the RFP shall remain unchanged. 
 
 
Signature: _____________________________________ 
    (Offeror) 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Abdul Matin Zakir 
Procurement Specialist 
 


	Signature: _____________________________________

